Register for the GREGORY G. LAGAKOS PAPERS ADDITIONS

1937-1989 (Span dates 1967-1982)

MSS 169 (M89-24)

8.8 linear feet

Larisa Repin
Processing Archivist for the Balch Institute

June 2001

The Balch Institute for Ethnic Studies
18 South Seventh Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19106
[now the Historical Society of Pennsylvania
1300 Locust Street, Philadelphia, PA 19107]

This project was made possible with a generous grant from **John C. Haas**

22 Hollinger boxes of mss. 1 folder oversize materials ½ Hollinger box of unprocessed photographs and artifacts

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>page</u>
Provenance	1
Biographical notes	2
Scope and content	4
Record series descriptions	5
Record box list	8
Series I: AHEPA (American Hellenic Educational Progressive Association)	
Subseries A: National Headquarters: General Office Materials	8
Subseries B: National Headquarters: Office of the Supreme President & Vice President	11
Subseries C: Chapter & District Materials	13
Series II: Community & Religious Activities	
Subseries A: Greek Orthodox Archdiocese Of North and South America	14
Subseries B: Other National Community Organizations	18
Series III: Personal Materials	19
Index of Subjects and Correspondents	20

PROVENANCE

This collection was donated to the Balch Institute for Ethnic Studies by George Lagakos' daughter, Penelope, in June 1989. The papers came in as one accession M89-24 and were processed in June 2001 by Larisa Repin, archival assistant for the Balch Institute.

The photographs had not been processed as of June 2001. They retain the same MSS 169 number as the manuscripts.

The few artifacts (five convention badges) have also been removed from the manuscripts.

For related materials, see MSS 62 Gregory G. Lagakos Papers, and MSS 159 AHEPA, Power District # 4 Collection.

This project was made possible with generous grant from John C. Haas.

Page 2

GREGORY G. LAGAKOS PAPERS ADDITIONS MSS 169 (M89-24)

BIOGRAPHICAL NOTES

Gregory G. Lagakos was born in Camden, New Jersey, on August 16, 1912. He graduated from the College of William and Mary in 1935, and from the University of Pennsylvania Law School in 1938.

During World War II, Lagakos was a member of the Judge Advocate General's Department of U.S. Army. From 1942 to 1946, he served in this capacity in England, France, including during the Normandy campaign, Italy, and Greece, and as judge advocate and legal advisor to the American section of the allied mission to observe the Greek election in 1946.

After the war, Lagakos was a member of the law firm of Rappaport and Lagakos until he was made, and then elected, judge of the County Court in Philadelphia in 1965. In 1969 he became a judge on the city's Common Pleas Court and was re-elected to a second term in 1975.

Lagakos' primary activity beyond his legal career was with the American Hellenic Educational Progressive Association (AHEPA), a national Greek-American fraternal organization. He was the president of the Philadelphia Chapter in 1948; lieutenant governor and deputy district governor of Power District # 4 in 1952; and Pennsylvania state director of the AHEPA Relief Committee from 1953 to 1955. He then served as the national supreme counselor from 1955 to 1957, and was elected supreme vice president in 1978. In that capacity, he also served as national chairman of the AHEPA Growth and Expansion Committee, travelling throughout the United States to help form new chapters and increase the membership of the organization.

In addition to his many activities in AHEPA, Lagakos was a nationally prominent jurist and member of various civic, cultural, and professional organizations, part of which are represented in this collection. The following chronological outline shows a very small segment of the broad range and extent of his activities:

1949-1951	President and founder, Philadelphia Federation of American-Hellenic Societies
1955-1965	National Chairman, Greek Section, Nationalities Division, Democratic

National Committee

From 1962	Honorary Chairman, Philadelphia Celebration of Greek Independence Day
1964, 1965	Vice-Chairman, Nationalities Division, Pennsylvania State Democratic Committee
From 1970	Member, board of directors, National Conference of Christians and Jews
From 1976	Member, executive committee, Greek Orthodox Archdiocesan Council

In 1976, Lagakos was chairman of the 23rd Bicentennial Clergy-Laity Congress of the Greek Orthodox Archdiocese of North and South America, meeting in Philadelphia, and was responsible for the implementation of many of the Congress' subcommittee programs. He was also a member of the American Bar Association, the Pennsylvania Bar Association, and the Philadelphia Bar Association.

Lagakos was married to the former Catharine Stephano of Elkins Park, Pennsylvania, and they had one daughter, Penelope. He died on July 6, 1982.

SCOPE AND CONTENT

<u>Textual Records:</u> This collection spans the years 1937-1989, but the bulk of the materials is concentrated between 1967-1982, and covers Lagakos' civic, political, community and religious activities. Unfortunately, there is a very little personal and family information here. The most noteworthy of the materials is in the large Series I, reflecting Lagakos' participation with AHEPA, at the local, state, and national levels. Series II focuses on his participation in numerous other community or religious activities. The records generally consist of by-laws, correspondence, directories, financial data, historical notes, meeting minutes, newspaper clippings, official publications, programs, and reports. The few personal and family materials cover the years 1976-1989 and contain biographical information, Lagakos' resume and family tree. Most of the papers are in English, although there are a few in Greek.

The textual records, except for directories, financial documents, newspaper clippings, and reference materials, have been indexed.

<u>Photographs</u>: The photographs had not been processed as of June 2001. They retain the same MSS 169 number as manuscripts and have been placed at the end of the manuscript collection in a separate box.

<u>Artifacts:</u> Five convention badges have also been removed from the records and put in the same box as the photographs, although carefully separated from them.

RECORD SERIES DESCRIPTIONS

SERIES I: AHEPA (American Hellenic Educational Progressive Association), 1937-1985, Boxes 1-14 & OS (Oversize) Folder

This big series has been divided into three subseries to reflect the major areas of Gregory Lagakos' involvement with AHEPA, where he served in numerous capacities on different levels.

SUBSERIES A: National Headquarters: General Office Materials, 1937-1982 Boxes 1-5 & OS (Oversize) Folder

This subseries contains some proceedings of AHEPA's national and grand conventions, and the Atlanta 1972 convention, held in the city where the organization was founded. There are some intriguing materials regarding Lagakos' involvement with a political controversy between two feuding AHEPA factions, the "First Party" and the Lagakos' backed "United Party" (box 1, folders 8-12). The bulk of this series is from several committees, including something called the Ten Man Bipartisan Committee, which Lagakos chaired (1977); the Membership Committee, which he co-chaired (1970-1971); and the Cyprus Aegean Affairs Committee, for which he was as the legal counselor (1974-1975). Records here consist of correspondence, directories, financial data, histories, meetings, newspaper clippings, and official publications, mostly the "Ahepan" (1968-1981). There is also Lagakos' correspondence with the president of the U.S.A., Jimmy Carter, and the Prime Minister of Greece, Constantine Caramanlis, regarding Greek-American community concern about the Cyprus-Turkey conflict in 1978 (box 3, folders 7-11). Most of the materials are in English, although there are some in Greek. Arrangement is alphabetical.

SUBSERIES B: National Headquarters: Office of the Supreme President &Vice President, 1966-1985, Boxes 5-9

Lagakos was elected a supreme vice president at the 56th convention in August 1978. In 1979 he ran as a candidate for the post of supreme president but was unsuccessful.

SERIES I: AHEPA, 1937-1985

SUBSERIES B: National Headquarters: Office of the Supreme President &Vice President, 1966-1985

This subseries includes candidacy information and election data, as well as materials on a membership drive, successfully conducted by Lagakos in 1979. The records also consist of convention materials, correspondence, with newspaper clippings, interspersed throughout the folders, directories, financial and statistical data, meeting minutes, and reports, including a report on Lagakos' activities as vice president. Most of the materials are in English, with some in Greek. The subseries is arranged alphabetically.

SUBSERIES C: Chapter & District Materials, 1965-1982, Boxes 9-14

This subseries deals mostly with materials of the Greater Philadelphia Hercules-Spartan Chapter # 26 when Gregory Lagakos was president in 1948, and Power District #4 when he was the lieutenant governor and deputy district governor in 1952. Material here contains information about district conventions, anniversaries and chapter celebrations (including AHEPA's golden anniversary Grand Ball of the Philadelphia Chapter), initiations, and installations. The largest part of the materials is correspondence (1965-1982). In addition, the records consist of directories of members, financial data, meeting minutes, and reports. Again, most of the materials are in English. Arrangement is alphabetical.

SERIES II: COMMUNITY & RELIGIOUS ACTIVITIES, 1963-1982, Boxes 14-22

SUBSERIES A: Greek Orthodox Archdiocese of North and South America, 1967-1982, Boxes 14-21

In 1960, Lagakos became a Knight of the Order of St. Andrew, and in 1976 served as general chairman of the Greek Orthodox Clergy-Laity Congress in Philadelphia. In 1979 he was awarded the Gold Cross of the Holy Sepulchre at St. George's Greek Orthodox Cathedral.

SERIES II: COMMUNITY & RELIGIOUS ACTIVITIES, 1963-1982

SUBSERIES A: Greek Orthodox Archdiocese of North and South America, 1967-1982

The bulk of this series is material about the Clergy-Laity Congress, including agreements, albums and workbooks, schedules of events, correspondence, directories, financial documents, historical notes, minutes, newspaper clippings, programs, and reports. Most noteworthy, perhaps, are Lagakos' records outlining the construction and ownership of a senior housing project, created by the St. George Orthodox Cathedral and the St. George Senior Housing Corporation in 1973. Most of the materials are in English, although there are some in Greek. The materials are arranged alphabetically.

SUBSERIES B: Other National & Community Organizations, 1963-1982, Boxes 21-22

This small subseries includes materials of several other national or political organizations with which Lagakos was involved, in particular, the Democratic National Committee, for which Lagakos was a national treasurer (1964-1965); the National Conference of Christians and Jews, Inc., on which he served as a member of board of directors (from 1970) and was chairman of 1976 Brotherhood Week; and the Nazareth Academy, at whose Educational Advisory Board he served in 1976. The records consist mostly of correspondence, directories, and minutes. Most are in English. Arrangement is alphabetical.

SERIES III: PERSONAL MATERIALS, 1976-1989, Box 22

This tiny section contains some personal and family information, including Lagakos' resume, biography, family tree, and two certification cards. Also there is a bulletin from the University of Pennsylvania where Lagakos received his law degree in 1938. Regrettably, no materials document his private life.

BOX LIST

SERIES I: AHEPA (American Hellenic Educational Progressive Association), 1937-1985, Boxes 1-14 & OS (Oversize) Folder

SUBSERIES A: National Headquarters: General Office Materials, 1937-1982 Boxes 1-5 & OS (Oversize) Folder

<u>Box</u>	<u>Folder</u>		
1	1	Agreements & petition	1937, 1974-76
	2	Appraisal report	1981
	3	Banquets & awards	1971-80
	4	Constitution, Order of Sons of Pericles	1969, 1976 & n.d.
	5-7	Convention materials	1937-78 & n.d.
	8-12	Correspondence	1966-82 & n.d.
	13-14	Directories	1974-80 & n.d.
2	1-2	Financial & statistical data	1976-81 & n.d.
	3	Forms	n.d.
	4	Historical & biographical notes, general	1967-79 & n.d.
	5	Meetings	1975-79

SERIES I: AHEPA, 1937-1985

SUBSERIES A: National Headquarters: General Office Materials, 1937-1982

<u>Box</u>	<u>Folder</u>			
2 OS Fo	6-7 older	1 1 11 6		
	8-10	Official publications	1968-81	
	11	Projects, resolutions & other materials	1977-78 & n.d.	
	12	Property (AHEPA building)	1976-81 & n.d.	
	13	Year books	1977-79	
		Committee Materials		
		Ten Man Bipartisan Committee		
3	1-3	Correspondence	1976-78 & n.d.	
	4	Directories	1978 & n.d.	
	5	Minutes	1976-77	
	6	Reports	1976-77 & n.d.	
	Cyprus Aegean Affairs Committee			
	7-11	Correspondence	1970-82 & n.d.	
	12	Directories	1978-80 & n.d.	

SERIES I: AHEPA, 1937-1985

SUBSERIES A: National Headquarters: General Office Materials, 1937-1982

Box Folder

Committee Materials

Cyprus Aegean Affairs Committee

OS Folder		Map	1976
3	13	Minutes & agendas	1979-81 & n.d.
OS Fo	older	Posters & flyers	1976-79
3	14	Reports & other materials	1980 & n.d.
4	1-3	Newspaper clippings	1974-81 & n.d.
	4-6	Publications & reference materials	1974-81 & n.d.
	7-10	Statements, remarks & other materials	1975-81 & n.d.
	Memb	pership Committee	
	11-13	Correspondence	1964-71 & n.d.
	14	Directories	n.d.
5	1	Reports	1979

SERIES I: AHEPA, 1937-1985

SUBSERIES B: National Headquarters: Office of the Supreme President & Vice President, 1966-1985, Boxes 5-9

<u>Box</u>	Folder			
5	2	2 Constitutions		
		Convention materials		
	3	Album	1978	
	4	Correspondence	1979	
	5	Financial statements	1977-85	
	6	Lists & schedules	1979-81	
	7	Minutes	1975-79	
	8	Policy	n.d.	
	9	Reports	1979	
	10-16	Correspondence	1977- Oct., 1978	
6	1-10	Correspondence	Nov. 1978- May, 1979	
7	1-8	Correspondence	June, 1979- 1985 & n.d.	
	9-11	Directories & schedules	1977-79 & & n.d.	

SERIES I: AHEPA, 1937-1985

SUBSERIES B: National Headquarters: Office of the Supreme President & Vice President, 1966-1985

<u>Box</u>	<u>Folder</u>		
		Election materials	
7	12	Correspondence	1979-80
	13	Directories & other materials	1979
	14	Profiles & other candidacy information	1979
		Financial & statistical data	
8	1-3	Correspondence	1977-81 & n.d.
	4-5	Statements & other documents	1975-81
	6-7	Reports & other materials	1978-79
	8	Roster (delinquent members)	1978
	9-13	Minutes, meetings & agendas	1967-82
9	1	Minutes, meetings & agendas	1982
	2	Questionnaires	1978
	3	Responsibilities (of the board of trustees)	n.d.
	4	Resumes, biographical notes & other materials	1966, 1979 & n.d.

SERIES I: AHEPA, 1937-1985

SUBSERIES B: National Headquarters: Office of the Supreme President & Vice President, 1966-1985

<u>Box</u>	<u>Folder</u>			
9	5	Reports	1969, 1978-79	
	SUBS	ERIES C: Chapter & District Materials, 1965-1982, Boxes 9	9-14	
<u>Box</u>	Folder			
9	6-8	Anniversaries & other celebrations	1969-74	
	9	By-laws & manuals	1978-79 n.d.	
	10-11	Convention materials (district)	1972-80	
	12-13	Correspondence	1965-67	
10	1-12	Correspondence	1968-69	
11	1-12	Correspondence	1970-79	
12	1-7	Correspondence	1980-82	
			& n.d.	
	8-14	Directories & other membership information	1968-80	
13	1-3	Directories & other membership information	n.d.	

SERIES I: AHEPA, 1937-1985

	SUBSERIES C: Chapter & District Materials, 1965-1982			
<u>Box</u>	<u>Folder</u>			
		Financial data		
13	4	Chapter billing & other documents	1981	
	5	Chapter roster	1979	
	6-7	Statements, reports & other documents	1968-82	
	8-10	Initiations & installations	1969-79 & n.d.	
	11	Minutes & meetings	1967-70	
14	1-3	Minutes & meetings	1971-81	
	4	Publications	1967-80	
	5	Reports, recommendations & other materials	1968-81 & n.d.	
SERIE	ES II: C	OMMUNITY & RELIGIOUS ACTIVITIES, 1963-1982, Bo	oxes 14-22	
	SUBSERIES A: Greek Orthodox Archdiocese of North and South America, 1967-1982, Boxes 14-21			
<u>Box</u>	<u>Folder</u>	• •		
14	6-9	Correspondence	1967-81	
	10	Directories	1976	

SERIES II: COMMUNITY & RELIGIOUS ACTIVITIES, 1963-1982

SUBSERIES A: Greek Orthodox Archdiocese of North and South America, 1967-1982

Box	Folder			
14	11	Financial statements		1976, 1978
	12	Historical & biographical	notes	1976-79 & n.d.
	13	Minutes & meetings		1977-82
	14	Newspaper clippings		1976-79 & n.d.
	15	Programs		1976 & n.d.
		Subsections of the archdic	ocese	
		Clergy-Laity Cong	gress	
15	1	Agreement	s & contracts	1976 & n.d.
	2-4	Albums &	workbooks	1974-76 & n.d.
	5	Calendar &	c schedules of events	1974-78 & n.d.
	6	Certificates	3	1976 & n.d.
	7-9	Correspond	lence	1974-76
16	1-12	Correspond	lence	March- May, 1976

SERIES II: COMMUNITY & RELIGIOUS ACTIVITIES, 1963-1982

SUBSERIES A: Greek Orthodox Archdiocese of North and South America, 1967-1982

<u>Box</u>	<u>Folder</u>		
	Subsection	ons of the archdiocese	
	C	lergy-Laity Congress	
17	1-11	Correspondence	June-Nov., 1976
18	1-5	Correspondence	Dec., 1976- 1978 & n.d.
	6-14	Directories	1975-76 & n.d.
		Financial & statistical data	
19	1	Budget	1976
	2-8	Reports	1976
	9-10	Statements & other documents	1973-76 & n.d.
20	1	Historical & biographical notes	1976
	2	Minutes, meetings & agendas	1975-76 & n.d.
	3	Newspaper clippings	1976
	4-5	Programs	1974-76 & n.d.

SERIES II: COMMUNITY & RELIGIOUS ACTIVITIES, 1963-1982

SUBSERIES A: Greek Orthodox Archdiocese of North and South America, 1967-1982

<u>Box</u>	<u>Folder</u>					
	Subsections of the archdiocese					
	Clerg	y-Laity Congress				
20	6-9	Reports, resolutions & other materials	1974-76			
	10	Rules & responsibilities	1974-76			
	11	Ticket books	1976			
	Knights of St. Andrew					
	12-13	Correspondence	1969-82 & n.d.			
	14	Historical & other information	1970			
	15	Programs	1970-77			
	St. George Greek Orthodox Cathedral & St. George Senior Housing Corporation					
21	1	Articles of incorporation & other documents	s 1969, 1978			
	2	By-laws & organizational information	n.d.			
	3-5	Correspondence	1968-80 & n.d.			
	6	Projects	1973 & n.d.			

SERIES II: COMMUNITY & RELIGIOUS ACTIVITIES, 1963-1982

SUBSERIES B: Other National & Community Organizations, 1963-1982, Boxes 21-22

<u>Box</u>	<u>Folder</u>	• •			
		American Hellenic League & other Greek organizations			
21	7	Correspondence & other materials	1969-78 & n.d.		
		American Immigration Lawyers Association			
21	8-10	Correspondence & other materials	1967-82 & n.d.		
	11-13	Minutes & other materials	1977-82 & n.d.		
		Democratic National Committee & other political organiza	ations		
22	1-2	Correspondence	1963-68		
	3-4	Directories	1964-75		
	The National Conference of Christians and Jews, Inc.				
	5-6	Correspondence & other materials	1977-80 & n.d.		
	Nazareth Academy				
	7-8	Correspondence & other materials	1976-82		

SERIES III: PERSONAL MATERIALS, 1976-1989, Box 22 $\,$

<u>Box</u>	<u>Folder</u>					
22	9	Biographical notes, resume & family tree	1976-89 & n.d.			
	10	Legal reference materials	1976 & n.d.			

INDEX OF SUBJECTS AND CORRESPONDENTS

(Correspondence is indicated by an asterisk)

Directories, financial materials, newspaper clippings, and reference materials are not indexed. Gregory G. Lagakos appears as a correspondent in almost all categories and thus has also not been indexed as such.

```
*Academy of Saint Basil, 7:1, 14:6
```

AHEPA American-Hellenic Directory Program, 6:1-3

*AHEPA Banquet Committee, 6:9, 9:5

AHEPA chapter installation, 10:7

AHEPA chapter mass initiation, 11:8-10, 13:8-10

AHEPA Charitable Programs, 11:11

*AHEPA Civic Project Study Committee, 14:5

*AHEPA Committee to elect Lagakos as supreme president, 7:12

AHEPA Cooley's Anemia Foundation, 5:16, 7:6, 11:4

*AHEPA Cyprus Aegean Affairs Committee, 3:6-14, 9:5

*AHEPA Dance Committee, 9:7, 10:8-9

*AHEPA Daughters of Penelope, 10:4, 10:11

AHEPA Degree Team, 10:1-2, 10:6, 11:8, 11:10-11, 13:8, 14:5

*AHEPA Education and Scholarship Committee, 10:9, 11:1, 11:9

AHEPA Education Foundation, 2:11, 3:1, 5:16, 6:1, 6:6, 9:5

AHEPA First Party, 1:8-9, 2:4, 5:16, 6:1, 6:7

AHEPA's golden anniversary, 9:7-8

*AHEPA Grievance Committee, 9:5

*AHEPA Growth and Expansion, 1:9, 5:15-16, 6:1-5, 6:6-7, 6:9, 7:1-2, 7:8, 12:7

AHEPA Hall for Boys at St. Basil's Academy, 12:3

AHEPA Hellenic Festival, 9:7

AHEPA holiday in Athens, 9:7, 10:8-10

*AHEPA Holiday-in-Athens Dance Publicity Committee, 10:8-11:2, passim

AHEPA Journey to Greece, 1:8, 3:2, 6:8, 7:1-2

AHEPA Independent Alliance, 1:9, 6:8, 7:2

*AHEPA Legislative Committee, 9:5

*AHEPA Magazine, 10:9

AHEPA Maids of Athens, 10:4, 10:9, 10:11

* AHEPA Mother Lodge, 2:11

*AHEPA Membership Committee, 10:7, 11:4

^{*}Agnew, Spiro Theodore, 10:11

AHEPA Membership drive, 5:12, 5:15, 6:1, 6:6, 7:8, 11:8

AHEPA Mission to Cyprus and Greece, 3:8, 6:5

* AHEPAN, 10:9

AHEPA national golf tournament, 9:12

*AHEPA Nominating Committee, 14:5

AHEPA objects, 2:4

AHEPA Pilgrimage, 7:7

*AHEPA Power Line, 1:11, 10:2, 10:12

AHEPA Power Line, 14:4

AHEPA property, 1:2, 1:10-11, 2:12, 5:10, 9:5

"AHEPA Rules of Protocol", 6:1

AHEPA St. Basil's Campaign, 1:10

AHEPA Scholarship program, 7:6, 10:8

*AHEPA Senior Citizens Home Committee, 1:11, 11:1, 7:5

*AHEPA Sons of Pericles, 10:9, 10:11

AHEPA Souvenir Journal, 10:9-11, 12:4

"AHEPA's supreme vice president, Lagakos, to visit four AHEPA Districts in his Growth and Expansion visitation", 7:8

*AHEPA Sunshine and Sick Committee, 10:7

*AHEPA Ten Man National Bi-Partisan Committee, 3:1-6

AHEPA United Party, 1:10-12

AHEPA year pins, 9:6-7, 11:3

*Alessandroni, Walter E., 9:11

*Alexandrakis, Menelas, 17:1, 17:6-7

Ali, Muhammad, 7:1

*All Philadelphia Boys Choir, 17:6

*All Saints Greek Orthodox Church, 16:7, 16:10

American Hellenic Historical Association, 17:10-11

*American Hellenic Institute, 3:7, 4:8, 6:2, 14:6

*American Hellenic League, 21:7

*American Immigration Lawyers Association, 21:8-13

*Anatolia College, 2:11, 10:10,

*Angelopules, Angelo, 1:8

Archbishop Iakovos comments on arms embargo vote, 4:10

Archbishop Iakovos twentieth enthronement anniversary, 14:8, 14:12

*Assumption Greek Orthodox Church, 16:7

*The Athenians, 10:11

*Athens, Andrew A., boxes 3, 4, 14, 15-18, <u>passim</u>

```
*Bacopulos, George J., 14:8
```

Brademas' statement on house vote on Turkish arm embargo, 4:10

* Broderick, Raymond J., 9:11, 10:11

Broderick, Raymond J., 9:4

Chase, Thomas L., 4:10

Cypriot Archbishop to visit Philadelphia, 4:10

Cyprus conflict, 4:7-8, 5:16, 6:6, 6:8, 14:7

^{*}The Balch Institute for Ethnic Studies, 17:11

^{*}Barrett, William A., 9:11

^{*}Bauer, Edward G., 9:11

^{*}Belantonas, Athanasios, 3:10

^{*}Bentsen, Lloyd M., 6:6

^{*}Borden, Anthony G. B., boxes 16-21, passim

^{*}Brademas, John, 9:11, 16:10

^{*}Brooke, Edward W., 16:6

^{*}Capella, Basil, 9:12

^{*}Caramanlis, Constantine, 3:9

^{*}The Cardinal's Commission on Human Relations, 17:3, 17:5

^{*}Carter, Hooding, 3:9

^{*}Carter, Jimmy, 3:7-8, 4:7-8, 14:8

^{*}Carter, Roslyn, 21:4

^{*}CBS News, 14:7, 18:3

^{*}Chimples, George, 14:8

^{*}Christian Theological Seminary, 17:9

^{*}Clark, Joseph S., 9:11

^{*}Clemson University, 17:9

^{*}Clonaris, Gerald B., 11:2-3

^{*}The College of William and Mary, 17:9

^{*}Congress of the United States, 3:7-10

^{*}Consolidated Drake Press, 17:8, 17:10

^{*}Crits, Harre J., 10:7-12, 11:1, 12:3

^{*}Daley, Richard J., 15:7

^{*}DeMets, Pierre, 20:12-14

^{*}Democratic National Committee, 9:12, 22:1-4

^{*}Dimitriou, George D., 6:4

^{*}Drexel University, 16:8-10

```
*Dorian, Harry A., 11:1
*Doucas, Helen, 16:2
*Dougherty, Charles F., 3:8, 12:2, 13:10
*Doukas, Kimon A., 1:8, 9:11-13, 10:1, 14:9, 16:5, 17:3, 17:8
*Eagleton, Thomas F., 3:7-8, 4:7
*Elliot, Constantine D., 1:9, 5:15-16, 6:6-7, 6:10, 7:3
*Ethnic Heritage Affairs Institute, Inc., 17:8-9
*Fasseas, Andrew, 9:4, 9:12-13, 10:1-3, 10:11
*Firilas, Michael, 1:11, 7:6, 12:6
*Ford, Gerald R., 16:1
*Fringer, Alice D., 10:11
*Fusscas, James P., 6:8, 7:2
*Gabriel, George P., 1:8, 1:11, 5:11, 7:6, 10:4, 10:9, 10:11, 11:3-4, 11:8-9
*Gallas, George, 16:7
*Gaudiosi, Albert V., 16:5, 16:8, 16:10, 17:1-3, 18:3
*Gekas, George W., 1:8, 9:6, 14:8
*Georges, George W., 1:11, 9:7, 11:6, 11:11, 12:5-7, 13:9
*Ghotbzadeh, Sadegh, 3:8
*Goldfarb, Rabbi Harold, 16:8-9
*Gray, William H., 3:8
Grecian festival, 14:15
*Greek-American Cyclades Islands Federation of America and Canada, 3:7
*Greek Archdiocesan Cathedral of Holy Trinity, 14:7, 16:10
Greek Independence Day, 1:3
*Greek Orthodox Archdiocese of North and South America, 4:10, 5:14, 9:11,
                      & boxes 14-21, passim
*Greek Orthodox Church of the Annunciation, 3:9, boxes 14-21, passim
*Greek Orthodox Church of the Assumption, 17:10
*Greek Orthodox Ladies Philoptochos Society, Inc., 17:8, 17:11
*Greek Radio Program, 10:8
*Greek Sunday News, 17:2
*Green, William J., 9:11, 17:1
*Gregory, George D., 15:8, 16:8, 16:10
```

*Gregory, Peter J., 1:9

- *Heinz, John III, 3:7
- *The Hellenic American Committee for Cyprus of the Philadelphia Federation, 22:1
- *Hellenic American Neighborhood Action Committee, Inc., 7:6
- *The Hellenic Center, Inc., 17:10-11
- *The Hellenic Chronicle, 1:9, 3:10, 6:4 6:6, 10:8, 10:12, 11:11, 16:10-11, 17:1, 17:8
- * Hellenic Civic Association, 17:11
- *The Hellenic Journal, 18:2
- * Hellenic Lines Limited, 17:10
- * Hellenic News, 10:8, 22:2
- * Hellenic Society for the Performing Arts, 16:4
- *The Hellenic Times, 1:9, 3:10, 12:2, 17:1, 17:8
- * Hellenic University Club of Philadelphia, 10:10, 17:6-7
- * Hellenic Voice of Philadelphia, 22:1
- *The Hellenic World, 18:2
- *Holy Apostles Greek Orthodox Church, boxes 16-21, passim
- *Holy Trinity Greek Orthodox Church, boxes 16-21, passim
- *Holy Trinity Philoptochos Society, 16:11
- *Holy Trinity-Prophet Elias Churches, 16:7
- *Housing and Urban Development Department, 21:3-5

Housing program, 21:6

- *Howard Lanin Productions, Inc., 1:8, 9:7, 10:9, 11:1
- *Humphrey, Hubert H., 9:12, 16:6-7, 16:12, 17:1, 17:3
- *Iakovos, K., boxes 14-21, passim
- *Independent Committee for the International Year of the Child, 5:16, 6:5
- *International Publisher Industries, 15:9

Johnson, Linden, 22:2

Kapous, Taki, 18:4-5

- *Karloitsos, Alexander, 14:8
- *Katerlis, Demetrios S., 14:8

Kellis, James G., 4:7

- *Kline, Ernest P., 16:3, 17:6, 17:9, 18:3
- *Knights of Saint Andrew, 17:1, 17:9, 20:12-15
- *Koudelis, George, 1:8, 9:6, 10:2, 11:6-7, 12:5, 21:8-10
- *Kouvates, Michael N., 15:7
- *Kyprianou, Spyros, 3:9-10
- *KYW Radio Station, 10:2, 10:11

```
*Lafayette College, 17:9
```

Lalos, Arthur, 5:11-13, 5:16, 6:1-3, 6:5-6, 7:2, 7:4

- *Lambrias, Panayiotes, 6:6
- *Lanin, Howard, 10:9, 11:1
- *La Salle College, 16:8
- *League of Greek Orthodox Stewards, 14:8-9
- *Leber, George J., 1:3, 5:10, 9:12-13, box 10, passim, 11:1, 13:9-10
- *Leberer, Raymond F., 3:7-8
- *Lois Advertising Agency, 16:8
- *Lyman, Joseph J., 1:1
- *Manaitis, Timothy, 3:8-10, boxes 6-12, passim

Manatos, Mike N., 9:11

*Manesiotis, Louis, 9:13, 10:3

Manesiotis, Louis, 9:4

*Manos, John S., 11:6-10, boxes 15-22, passim

Manta, Steve, 1:10

- *Marlos, Simon N., 1:3, 13:10
- *Matsas, Alexander A., 9:11
- *Micrantsicas, Xenophon K., 1:11

Micrantsicas, Xenophon K., 9:4

- *Morris, James J., 6:4
- *Myers, Michael, 3:3, 3:8
- *The National Conference of Christian and Jews, Inc., 22:5-6
- *The National Herald, 1:12, 7:4, 17:8
- *Nationalities Service Center, 17:11
- *Nazareth Academy, 22:7-8
- *New York Life Insurance Company, 10:8-11
- *Northland College, 17:9
- *Notre Dame University, 14:8
- *O'Neill, Joseph F., 14:8, 16:2, 16:9, 17:3, 17:5, 17:7-8
- *Orthodox Observer, 14:9, 16:10-11, 17:9-10

Paffas, Efhimios D., 10:8-10

*Pakuris, Peter, 13:10, 14:5, 16:12

Pakuris, Peter, 12:4-5

```
*Panepirotic Federation of America and Canada, 17:10
```

- *Pan-Hellenic Track Committee, 1:11, 6:8
- *Pan Laconian Federation, 10:2
- *Pan Olympia Tours, Inc., 11:1
- *Panopulos, Chris, 6:7
- *Pappas, Aster C., 11:6-10, 12:7
- *Pappas, John T., 10:7-11

Paul, John II, 14:8

- *Paulus, Peter V., 1:3, 3:8, boxes 5-7, passim
- *Pennsylvania Baptist Association, 17:2
- *Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency, 21:3
- * Pennsylvania State Democratic Committee, 22:1-5
- *Percy, Charles H., 16:10, 16:12
- *Petris, Nicholas C., 1:3
- *The Philadelphia Convention and Visitors Bureau, 17:6-7
- *The Philadelphia Daily News, 3:8, 16:12
- * Philadelphia Federation of American Hellenic Societies, 16:4, 22:2
- *The Philadelphia Inquirer, 3:9, 10:2, 10:8, 16:11
- * Philadelphia'76, Inc. boxes 15-17, passim
- *Politis, Constantine V., 15:10, 16:4, 16:7
- *The Presbytery of Donegal of the United Presbyterian Church in the United States of America, 17:2
- *Rappoport & Lagakos, 4:11
- *Reagan, Ronald, 4:9

Rizzo, Framk L., 14:

- *Roman Catholic Archdiocese, 17:6
- *Roman Catholic Bilateral, 14:7
- *Rosen, Abe, 9:11
- *Rossides, Eugene T., boxes 4:7, 4:10, 14-21, passim
- St. Andrew's Greek Orthodox Church, boxes16-21, passim
- *St. Basil Greek Orthodox Church, boxes 16-21, passim
- *St. Demetrious Greek Orthodox Church, 11:7, 11:9, boxes 16-21, passim
- *St. George Greek Orthodox Church, 11:1, boxes 16-21, passim
- *St. George's Alexandrine Co., 1:1
- *St. George Senior Housing Corporation, 21:3-6
- *St. John the Baptist Greek Orthodox Church, boxes16-21, passim

- *St. Joseph College, 16:10
- *St. Luke Greek Orthodox Church, boxes 16-21, passim
- *St. Matthews Hellenic Orthodox Church, 17:6
- *St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox Church, boxes 16-21, passim
- *St. Paul Greek Orthodox Church, boxes 16-21, passim
- *The St. Photios National Shrine Committee, 14:7
- *St. Sophia Cathedral, 16:6, 16:10
- *St. Thomas Greek Orthodox Church, 15:7, boxes 16-21, passim
- *Sts. Constantine & Helen Greek Orthodox Church, boxes 16-21, passim
- *Sts. Peter & Paul Greek Orthodox Church, boxes 16-21, passim
- *Schweiker, Richard S., 3:8
- *Scott, Hugh, 9:11, boxes 16-22, passim
- *Serbos, Demetrios, 17:3, 17:6
- *Shapp, Milton, 9:11, 15:9, 16:1, 17:5, 17:8

Shapp, Milton, 9:4

- *Shiomos, Thomas N., 1:9-10
- *Silas, boxes 14-21, passim
- *Skylitsis, Aristides, 11:2
- *Smyrnis, Nick, 1:8, 3:8-10, 7:5

Smyrnis, Nick, 9:4

Socratic award, 7:7

- *Southeastern Pennsylvania Synod of the Lutheran Church in America, 17:2
- *Stewart & Stephen, Inc., 1:1-2

Tarnoff, Barbara Kay, 9:4

- *Tate, James H. J., 9:11, 10:2, 10:11, boxes 16-21, passim
- *Taylor, Ada, 10:8-10
- *Teague, Olin E., 3:7
- *Temple University, 3:7, 6:4, 16:9, 16;12, 17:5-6
- *Three Hiearchs Greek Orthodox Church, 16:10
- *Thornburgh, Richard, 14:8
- *Tsiouris, William T., 10:2-5

Tsirakoglou, Nikolaos, 9:4

- *Tzounis, John A., 3:9-10
- *United Greek Orthodox Churches, 16:7
- *United Hellenic American Congress, 3:7, 3:10, 18:1
- *U.S. Conference of World Council of Churches, 17:1
- *University of Pennsylvania, 1:9, 6:4, 16:4, 22:9

- *Vance, Cyrus R., 3:7
- *Villanova University, 6:4
- *Villas, Ernest A., boxes 14-20, passim

Wagner, Robert F., 22:1-2

- *Washington and Jefferson College, 17:9
- *Watson, Marvin W., 22:2
- *WCAM Radio Station, 10:8
- *WCAU Radio Station, 18:2
- *WDAS Radio Station, 10:2
- *Wexler, Anne, 3:7-9
- *WFIL Radio Station, 10:2
- *WHAT Radio Station, 10:2
- *White House, 3:7-10, 9:11
- *WIP Radio Station, 10:2
- *WJMJ Radio Station, 22:1
- *World Council of Churches, 17:2-3
- *WPBS Radio Station, 10:2
- *WTEL Radio Station, 10:8
- *Yatran, Gus, 3:8, 3:10, 16:9, 17:1
- *Zambus, Nicholas D., 6:5-6, 6:8
- *Zecca, Anthony P., 16:8, 17:6, 18:3
- *Zecca, Mark, 21:8